BC Hydro elnvoicing User Guide

Updated July 2025



BC Hydro Power smart

Table of Contents

Ariba Basics	
Signing in2	1
Ariba Home Page, Menus and Navigation3	,
TAX ID Number	
Electronic Order Routing	,
Notification Emails	
User Roles and Access	
Keeping your Account Current9	
Managing Your Orders10	
Search for Orders	I
Confirm or Reject Orders	,
Create Ship Notices FOR MATERIALS ORDERS15	
Failed Orders	
Submitting Your Invoice	
Service Sheet First (SESF) Services Invoicing21	
Invoice First (IF) Services Invoicing	i
Materials Invoicing	
Invoice, Payment & Remittance Status	
Find A Submitted invoice	1
Invoice Status & Rejection Reasons	i
Scheduled Payment & Early Payment Offer	j
Remittance Details	
Correcting or Cancelling an Invoice	
Credit Memos	
Early Payment Offers (EPOs)43	
Set Up EPOs	
Your Early Payment Offers	1
Cash Optimizer	
Reporting	
Troubleshooting	
Contact Ariba Help Centre	

Welcome to electronic invoicing (**elnvoicing**) at BC Hydro. We partner with the **SAP Ariba Network (Ariba)** to provide our suppliers with a cloud-based solution to manage orders and invoices centrally, and to use <u>Early</u> <u>Payment Offers (EPOs)</u> to meet their changing cash flow needs.

As a BC Hydro supplier, you'll need an **Ariba Network Enterprise Account** to transact with us. If you don't have an account or it's not registered with us, contact our team at <u>AccountsPayable@bchydro.com</u> to get started.

Remember that you always transact with BC Hydro free of charge, but you could incur Ariba fees if you use the same account with your other customers - contact Ariba Customer Support to find out more.

IMPORTANT: As an Ariba supplier, you may receive BC Hydro purchase orders for materials and/or services. It's important to review each order to understand its invoicing **Terms & Conditions** as these can vary. Knowing how and when to submit your invoice is key to a trouble-free experience and on-time payment. We will talk more about this in the Submitting Your Invoice section of this guide.

Ariba Basics

SIGNING IN

- 1. CTRL+click this link to access the <u>SAP Business Network Supplier (ariba.com)</u> sign-in screen **OR** enter supplier.ariba.com in your web browser.
- On the Supplier sign-on screen, follow the prompts to enter your the Username and Password to sign in.

Once you're signed-in, you will see your **Ariba Home Page**.



Please note: SAP is updating their supplier sign-in page. Once updated, the sign-in page will show **Account sign in** instead of **Supplier sign-in**, but the sign-in steps are unchanged.

ARIBA HOME PAGE, MENUS AND NAVIGATION

Ariba's **Navigation Bar**, **Workbench**, **Search Bar**, and **Overview Tile Bar** are all designed to help you navigate to the screens you need for setting up your account, your users, and for managing your orders, invoices, and payments.

In this guide, we'll show you how to access everything you need from the **Navigation Bar (1)**, but we'd encourage you to use the Ariba Help Center to find out more about the **Workbench (2)**, **Search Bar (3)**, and the **Overview Tile Bar (4)**.



Navigation Bar

Home

• Return to the Home Page from any screen.

Orders

- View orders, send order confirmations and shipping notices.
- Submit invoices for material and invoice first suppliers.

Fulfillment

- View confirmed orders, service sheets, ship notices, goods receipts.
- Submit invoices for Service Entry Sheet First suppliers.

Invoices

• View invoices, credit memos and payment status.

Payments

• View early payment discount offers (EPOs), scheduled payments and remittance advices.

Reports

• Run pre-configured Ariba reports.

Ariba Help Center 🕜

• Access Ariba Support, knowledgebase articles, and the Ariba Community.

Account Settings

• Update company profile, account settings, contacts, user access, and email notifications.

Setting up your Ariba Account

Once your Ariba Enterprise account is registered with us, log in and configure these **Account Settings** to prepare for receiving orders.

- Tax ID Number
- Electronic Order Routing
- Notification Emails
- User Roles and Access Permissions

IMPORTANT: Only your account administrator or a user with administrator access can update your account settings. To find your administrator's contact information, sign into your Ariba account, then from the **Navigation Bar**, click on **Account Settings > Contact Administrator**.

TAX ID NUMBER

Your TAX ID Number is your Canadian Goods and Services Tax (GST) registration number, and is required for invoicing.

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Account Settings Company Profile.
- Click Business Information on the left hand pane.
- In the Tax Information section, enter your Canadian GST number into the Tax ID field. Do not include spaces, hyphens or dashes.

Tax ID is a required field when submitting your invoices and can't be left blank. Enter **000000000** if you're not registered for Canadian GST.

4. Click on Save.

Jane Smith	
Supplier, 123 @bchydro.com	
My Account	
Link User IDs	
Contact Administrator	
Company Profile	
Settings >	
Logout	
	Jane Smith
	ANID: AN01006567652-T - DUNS:
AND A REAL AND A	Employees
Power smart	Business Type
	Business Type
P	
Sverview	Supplier Legal Form
Contraction	-
8 Credentials	
-	Product and Service
Certifications	Categories
Sustainability Ratings	-
	 Industrial electric power distribution
简简 Additional Addresses	
쉽 Additional Addresses	Credentials
Business Information Contacts	Credentials Certifications
Business Information	

ELECTRONIC ORDER ROUTING

Ariba offers several **Electronic Order Routing** methods for receiving orders. We recommend **Online or Email** routing for BC Hydro orders.

- o Online: New and changed orders can only be viewed online from your Ariba account.
- Email: New and changed orders can be viewed online from your Ariba account, and a copy of the order is also provided via email. Multiple teams can receive the order copy even without account access.

New accounts automatically default to the **Online** routing method. If this method meets your business needs, nothing more is required and you can skip ahead to set up <u>Notification Emails</u>. Otherwise, follow these steps to set up for **Email** routing.

- 1. From the Navigation Bar, click on Account Settings (8) > Settings > Electronic Order Routing.
- 2. In the New Orders section, click on the Catalog Orders without Attachment box and select Email.
- Enter up to 5 email addresses, each MUST BE separated by a comma with no spaces (e.g. email1@gmail.com,email2@gmail.com,email3@gmail.com)

IMPORTANT: These email addresses must be valid, active and able to receive emails at all times, otherwise your orders will fail to route. You can't invoice against a failed order or receive updates for a failed order until the fail condition is fixed. See <u>Failed Orders</u>.

 Click on the checkbox for your preferred attachment option(s); we recommend the two options highlighted for you below.

New Orders		
Document Type	Routing Method	Options
Catalog Orders without Attachments	Email V Online cXML Email	Email address: Attach cXML document in the email message Include document in the email message Leave attachments online and do not include them with email message. This applies to all orders with attachments that have the routing method "Same as new catalog orders without attachments". Attach PDF document in the email message
Catalog Orders with Attachments	EDI vithout attachments \checkmark cXML Pending Queue	Current Routing method for new orders: Email Attachments will be included in the order.
Non-Catalog Orders without (i) Attachments	Fax vithout attachments \checkmark	Current Routing method for new orders: Email
Non-Catalog Orders with (i) Attachments	Same as new catalog orders without attachments \checkmark	Current Routing method for new orders: Email Attachments will be included in the order.
Change/Cancel Orders		
Document Type	Routing Method	Options
Catalog Orders without Attachments	Same as new catalog orders without attachments \checkmark	Current Routing method for new orders: Email

- Your Change/Cancel Orders settings will automatically use the same New Orders settings, but you can also configure these differently.
- 6. Click **Save** to save your settings and return to the home page.
- 7. If applicable, also ensure your email server allows for emails and attachments from @ariba.com.

NOTIFICATION EMAILS

Ariba provides you the option to set up email alerts for documents or tasks needing attention. These are entirely optional but as a start, we'd recommend that you set up these five notifications and remove those you don't need later.

- Electronic Order Routing email alerts for new, changed or cancelled orders (note: this is simply a notification email; the order copy is not attached).
- o Service Entry Sheet email alerts for approved service sheets for invoicing.
- Electronic Invoice Routing email alerts for changes in invoice status.
- o Accelerated Payments email alerts for Early Payment Offers
- Settlement (Payment Remittance) email alerts for payments issued. Please ensure your AR team is set up to receive remittance advice notifications as this information is only available through your Ariba account.
 - From the Navigation Bar, click on Account Settings 8 > Settings > Notifications.
 - In the Network tab, locate the Electronic Order Routing section then select the checkbox beside the type(s) of notification to enable. We'd recommend checking all boxes to start so you don't miss any alerts, then finetune your preferences later.
 - Enter up to 5 email addresses, each *MUST BE* separated by a comma with no spaces (for example: <u>email1@gmail.com,email2@gmail.com,</u> <u>email3@gmail.com</u>).



- 4. Next, scroll down to complete each of the Service Sheet, Electronic Invoice Routing, Accelerated Payments and Settlement (Payment Remittance) sections the same way.
- 5. When all your notifications are set up, click on Save.

USER ROLES AND ACCESS

Ariba offers user roles so you can align a user's access with their corporate function. For example, you might have an Invoice Generator role for people who handle incoming purchase orders and create invoices. Once a user role is created, it can be assigned to individual users and they can log into your Ariba account.

REMINDER: Only your account administrator can create user roles and grant access to your account, so it's important to keep your administrator information accurate and current at all times.

Your Account Administrator

Ariba allows only **one** administrator for your account. When changing administrators, **be sure to transfer the role** to the incoming administrator to avoid any account access issues.

IMPORTANT: Share your Ariba account admin username and password with a few trusted individuals to ensure you don't lose access to your account when the Ariba admin is away. Consider giving at least one key user account admin access. If you do lose admin access to your account, <u>contact the SAP Ariba Help Centre</u> for assistance.

- As the outgoing administrator, log in and from the Navigation Bar, Account Settings > Settings > Users.
- From the Manage Users tab, click the checkbox for the user who will be the new administrator. If needed, use the + Create User icon to add a new user.
- 3. Click Actions > Make Administrator.
- From the Assign a Role page, select a new role for yourself (the outgoing administrator). Click Assign, then OK.
- You'll be logged out of Ariba as administrator, and your new role will take effect with your next log in – The new account administrator will also receive an email alerting them of their new administrator role.

Manage Roles	Manage Users	Manage User Auth	nentication					
Enable assignment of orders to users with limited access to Ariba Network. ① 								
Username V	Enter username			+]			
Apply	Reset					+		
Username	Email Addre	255	First Name	Last Name	Role Assigned		Actions	5
Jane.Smith	Jane.Smitl	@ACMEInc.com	Jane	Smith	Finance		Action	1S v
						Edit		
						Delete	9	
					L	Make	Administra	ator

Assign	a Role	
Select a r	new role for your	
	Name	Description
	Finance	All Permissions
	API Developer	Access to API development using the SAP Ariba developer portal.
	Manage Orders & Invoices	View and action orders, service sheets, invoices, and other documents (Permissions: Inbox Access, Outbox Access)
	Account Administrator	All Permissions
		Assign

Create User Roles

- Have the administrator or a user with administrator access log into the account.
- From the Navigation Bar, click on Account
 Settings > Settings > Users.
- In the Manage Roles tab, click on the + Create Role icon to add a new role.
- 4. Enter a **Name** and **Description** for the role.
- Check the box(es) to select Permissions for the role. Use the scroll bar and page navigator to see all available Permissions.
- 6. Click on Save.

Account Settings			Save Close	
Customer Relationships Users Notific	ations Application Subscriptions	Account Registration	API management	
Manage Roles Manage Users Ma	nage User Authentication			
Roles (2) Create and manage roles for your account. You	u can edit the role and add users to a ro	le. The Administrator role	e can be viewed, but cannot be mo	dified.
Filters Permission				
Select permission assigned	×			
Apply Reset				
			+	ш
Role Name	Users Assigned		Actions	

Create	Role	Save	Cancel
Indicat	tes a required field		
New R	ole Information		
	Name:*		
	Description:		
Permis	sions		
	sions		
_	ust have at least one permission.		
ach role m			
ach role m	ust have at least one permission.	Description	
ach role m	ust have at least one permission.	Description Access to API development using the SAP Ariba developer portal.	
	east have at least one permission.		
ach role m	east have at least one permission.	Access to API development using the SAP Ariba developer portal.	
ach role m	V we at least one permission.	Access to API development using the SAP Ariba developer portal. User can assign an order to a user with limited access to Ariba Network	

Assign User Roles

After a user role has been set up, it can be assigned to individual users.

- Have the administrator or a user with administrator access log into the account.
- In the Manage Users tab, click on the + Create User icon to add a new user and assign their role.

count Settings					Save	Clo	ose
Customer Relations	hips Users	Notifications	Application Sub	scriptions Acc	ount Registration	API manage	ment
Manage Roles	Manage Users	Manage Use	er Authentication				
Users Enable assignme Filter Users (You can only			s to Ariba Network.]	_		
Email Address 🗸	1				-		
Apply	Reset						
						+ =	
Usernam	e Email Addre	ss First Nam	e Last Name	Role Assigned	Customer Assigned	A	tions

- 4. Enter the required New User Information.
- Assign at least one Role to the user, but you can assign as many as needed.
- Select the Customer Assignment option.
 If you choose Select Customers, you will be asked to choose specific customers.
- 7. Click **Done** to save your changes.

If the user's email domain doesn't match the one associated with your account, you'll receive a warning prompt. At the prompt, click on **Yes**, then click on **Done**.

 The user will receive an email alerting them of their role and log in details.

		Done	Cancel
		eded assign them to a business unit. Ariba will email a temporary password to the address provided for the new user fiable after you click Done. However, you can modify role assignments at any time.	accou
New User Inforr	nation		
	Username: *	0	
	Email Address:*		
	First Name:*		
	Last Name: *		
		Do not allow the user to resend invoices to the buyer's account.	
		This user is the Ariba Discovery Contact	
		Limited access ①	
	Office Phone:	Country Area Number	
ole Assignmer	nt		
Role Assignmer	ıt	Description	
0		Description Access to API development, using the SAP Ariba developer portal.	
Name API Devel			
Name API Devel Manage C	oper	Access to API development using the SAP Ariba developer portal.	
API Devel	oper vrders & Invoices dministrator	Access to API development using the SAP Ariba developer portal. View and action orders, service sheets, involces, and other documents (Permissions: Inbox Access, Outbox Access)	

Keeping your Account Current

Your company information, account settings, and users will change as your company grows. We rely on this information to do business with you, so it's important to ensure it's all up to date in your Ariba account and in our systems. You can update the **Company Profile** and **Account Settings** directly from your Ariba account, but contact your BC Hydro Rep to update the information in our systems.

Change in	Update Ariba Company Profile	Update Ariba Account Settings	Notify your BC Hydro Rep
Payment and Banking Information for invoice payments. Notify your BC Hydro Representative of any changes. We don't use the payment and banking information in Ariba.			\checkmark
Company Information (name, address, phone, etc.)	\checkmark		\checkmark
Account Administrator Role or Contact Information	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
Other Key Contacts (contract rep, A/R or Finance Contact)	\checkmark		\checkmark
Tax ID Number		\checkmark	\checkmark
Settlement (Payment Remittance) Notification Email Address		\checkmark	\checkmark
Other Notification Email Addresses (order, invoice, or service sheet notification)		\checkmark	
Electronic Order Routing Email Addresses if using the Email order routing method		\checkmark	

Managing Your Orders

Ariba will send an email alert for new and changed orders if your Ariba account is configured for order <u>Notification Emails</u>. Likewise, your team will receive an order copy by email if your account is set up for <u>Electronic Order Routing</u> by email.

Whenever you receive a new or changed order, always review it for accuracy then **confirm** to let us know you agree with its terms. If you have questions about an order or wish to reject it, contact the BC Hydro contract administrator, representative or buyer named on the order.

SEARCH FOR ORDERS

You can view new, changed and cancelled orders within your Ariba account. Orders from the last 31 days are automatically displayed for you, but you can change the search filters to find a specific order number, orders in a different date range, or those matching other criteria.

Search by Date Range

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Orders > Purchase Orders.
- 2. Click Edit filters to expand the filters.
- Under Creation Date, select the desired date range for the search.
- 4. Click **Apply** to display your search results.

Orders				
8 Orders	1 Items to confirm	0 Items to ship	0 Return items	4 New orde
Last 31 days	Last 31 days	Last 31 days	Last 31 days	Last 31 da
	Partial match	Exact match Last 24 hours		[
Purchasing organizations	Customer locations	Last 7 days	Routing s	tatus
Purchasing organizations Select or type selections	Customer locations Image: Customer location Image: Customer location	Last 7 days Last 14 days	Routing s	tatus
Select or type selections		Last 14 days Last 31 days		tatus
		Last 14 days Last 31 days	All	tatus

5. We recommend these headings for your search results. If needed, click on the Order Number to view order details.

					Resend Fa	iled Orders		<u>نې</u>
Order Number	Version	Customer	Amount	Date	Order Status	Routing Status	Ŷ	Amount Invoiced
4500058805	5	BC Hydro	\$34,758.00 CAD	Nov 24, 2022	Partially Serviced	Sent		
4500002065	3	BC Hydro	\$576,700.00 CAD	Nov 12, 2022	Changed	Sent		
4500058779	1	BC Hydro	\$20,500.00 CAD	Nov 4, 2022	Partially Invoiced	Sent		\$1,900.00 CAD

Search by Order Number

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Orders > Purchase Orders.
- Click Edit filter to expand the filters, then click
 Exact match under the Order numbers box.

		1		
me Enablement Work	bench Orders ~	Fulfillment 🗸	Invoices 🗸 🛛 Pa	ayments ∽ Cata
	Purchase			
Need to customize your view			lters, and more by nav	igating to the Workbe
	Order Inc	quiries		
Orders				
8	1		\cap	
0	-		0	
Orders	Items to c	onfirm	Items to ship	
Last 31 days	Last 31 c	lays	Last 31 days	
Orders (8)				
✓ Edit filter				
Customers		Order numbers		Creation da
Select or type selections	c C	Type selection		Last 31 d
		 Partial match 	O Exact match	
Purchasing organizations		Customer location:	s	Order type

 Enter the order number, then click Apply to display the search results.

stomers		Order numbers
Select or type selections	c	Type selection
		○ Partial match
		 Partial match Exact match

 We'd recommend these headings for your search results. If needed, click on the search to add or remove displayed headers. When ready, click on the Order Number to view order details.

					Resend Fa	iled Orders	ſ#	101
Order Number	Version	Customer	Amount	Date	Order Status	Routing Status \downarrow	Amour	t Invoiced
4500058805	5	BC Hydro	\$34,758.00 CAD	Nov 24, 2022	Partially Serviced	Sent		

Order Details

At the top of the order you'll find header information including company names, terms and conditions,

contacts, order status and related documents. Below the header are the shipping address and order details.



CONFIRM OR REJECT ORDERS

When you have a new or changed order, review it then confirm it in Ariba. If you have questions about an order or wish to reject it, contact the BC Hydro contract administrator, representative or buyer named on order. Always confirm the entire order and only reject the entire order if directed by your BC Hydro contact.

Find Orders to Confirm

 From the Navigation Bar, click on Orders > Purchase Orders, then select the Items to Confirm tile.



 By default, orders needed in the next 90 days are displayed.

If you don't see order you're expecting, expand Edit Filter to adjust your search criteria then click Apply to display search results.

 Click on the Order Number to display the order details page.

Be sure to review the entire order and for material orders, check that all applicable freight and special charges are included.

SAP Business N	etwork 🗕 Enterpris	e Account				
Home Enableme	ent Workbench	Orders ~	Fulfillment ∨	Invoices \checkmark	Payments ~	Catalogs
Orders						
8 Orders		1 Items to confirm	1	O Items to ship)	Returr
Last 31 day	/s		;	Last 31 days		Last 3
Items to confirm		ext 90 days	de confirmation r	not all , +1 Exc	clude fully shipped	Exclude
Confirm 🗸	Reject 🗸					
× 🗆	Item No. ↑	Supplier Part No.	Description		Ν	leed By
~	Customer: BC Hy	dro - Order No. 45	00058793			
	10	UNAVAILABLE	ABS,PRM,15	" X 18",PAD,SORB	ENT, GREY D	ec 9, 2022

Confirm an Order

If you agree with the terms and conditions of the order, confirm it.

1. From the order details page, click Create

Order Confirmation > Confirm Entire Order.

Pu	ırchase Order: 450	00519	62	
	Create Order Confirmat	ion 👻	Create Ship Notice	Create Invoice 🔻
L	Confirm Entire Order			
	Update Line Items	istory		
	Reject Entire Order			

- On the Confirming PO page, enter a Confirmation # (this is your own internal reference number so use a number that's meaningful to you).
- 3. Scroll down to the Line Items section.
- Click Next to review the confirmation notice on the next screen.
- 5. When ready, click **Submit** to send the confirmation notice.
- When viewing your order details again, you will see the confirmation linked under Related Documents.

Confirming PO	
1 Confirm Entire Order	 Order Confirmation Header
Urder	
2 Review Order Confirmation	Confirmation #: Conf1234
	Associated Purchase 4500002047 Order #:
<u>↓</u>	Customer: BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST
	Supplier Reference:

Line Items						
Line #	Part # / Description	Customer Part #	Туре	Qty (Unit)	Need By	Unit P
▼ 10	UNAVAILABLE		Service		12 Jul	
	4000019982 WOSA F	P-group ARIBA				
	Current Order Status					
	Confirmed As Is					
10.10	F1FBH	3000038	Service	2.000		\$1,905
				(EA)		C
	RENEW ADJAC 1P W	/TAP,CUTOUT				
				Exit	Ne	vt
				EXIL	INC.	×1

🕞 BC Hydro	
To: ACME Inc	Purchase Order
1111 Main St Vancouver BC V2P 5G8	4500001495
Canada Phone: +1 (604) 111-1111	Amount: \$300,000.00 CAD Version: 2 (Previous Version)
Fax: Email: ACMESales@gmail.com	
	Routing Status: Acknowledged
	External Document Type: BCH Fixed PO (N Related Documents: Conf1234

Reject an Order

If you have questions regarding the terms of the order, reach out to your BC Hydro contract administrator, representative or buyer immediately. If they advise you to reject the order, follow the steps below.

 From the purchase order details page, click Create Order Confirmation > Reject Entire Order.

Purchase Order: 4500	005206	9	
Create Order Confirmation	on 🔻	Create Ship Notice	Create Serv
Confirm Entire Order			
Update Line Items	istory		
Reject Entire Order]		

- Enter a Confirmation # (this is your own internal reference number so use a number that's meaningful to you) and select a suitable Rejection Reason.
- Enter additional notes in Comments. A comment is required if you select the Other rejection reason.
- 4. Click Reject Order.

REJECT ENTIRE ORDER		
Order Confirmation Number: Confirmation #:	1	
Rejection Reason:	Please Select	\sim
Comments:		
	Reject Order	Cancel

CREATE SHIP NOTICES FOR MATERIALS ORDERS

Ship notices are required for all materials orders to help us prepare for receiving the goods.

 From the Navigation Bar, click on Orders > Purchase Orders, then select the Items to Ship tile.



 If you don't see your order, expand Edit Filter to adjust your search criteria then click Apply to display search results.

SAP Business	Network - Enterprise Account			
Home Enablem	nent Workbench Orders	Fulfillment ~	Invoices ~ Payme	ents ~ Catalogs R
Orders				
8 Orders	1 Items to co	unfirm	41	O Return item
Last 31 da	iys			Last 31 days
Items to ship (4	41)			
> Edit filter	Last 365 days Exclude fully sh	ipped, +1 Exclude f	Ully received Exclude fu	Illy invoiced
Create ship notion	се			
✓ □	Order No. Item No.	Supplier Part No.	Description	
~ 🗆	Customer: BC Hydro - Ship To	Address: Main Distrib	ution Centre, SURREY, E	C, CAN
	4500035291 10	UNAVAILABLE	GRP,CAB,50-64 MM CO	ND,SUPPORT,MED DUTY

- Click on the order number then click Create ship notice to view the Create Ship Notice page.
- 4. If you have different orders being shipped to the same address, you can include these orders in the same ship notice. Click the checkbox next to each order number. When ready, click Create Ship Notice to view the Create Ship Notice page.
- On the Create Ship Notice page, Enter the Packing Slip ID, Shipping Date and Delivery Date.

Enter any relevant information and add attachments as required. To add an attachment:

- Click Choose File to find your document.
- Then click Add Attachment.
- In the Order Items section, complete the Confirmation Status section for each item included in the ship notice.
- 7. Click **Next** to review the full ship notice.
- When you're ready, click Submit to send the ship notice.

Business Network -	
Purchase Order: 4500052051	
Create Order Confirmation 🔻	Create Invoice 🔻
Order Detail Order History	

Items to ship (41) Last 365 days	Exclude fully s	shipped, +1 Exclude	fully received Exclude fully invoiced
Create ship notio	ce			
× 🗌	Order No.	Item No.	Supplier Part No.	Description
× 🗌	Customer: BC H	Iydro - Ship To	Address: Main Distrik	ution Centre, SURREY, BC, CAN
☑	4500035291	10	UNAVAILABLE	GRP,CAB,50-64 MM COND,SUPPORT,MED DUTY
V	4500035292	10	UNAVAILABLE	GRP,CAB,50-64 MM COND,SUPPORT,MED DUTY



Order I	tems									
Order #		Item	Part # / [Description	Customer Pa	art #	Qty	Unit	Need By	Ship By
45000106	527	30	UNAVAIL BAT, DF		97007695 LKALINE,C,FL	AT TERN	20.000	EA	31 Mar 2021	
Sh	nipment	Status								
To	tal Item	Due Quant	tity: 20 E	4						
Co	onfirmati	on Status								
To	tal Conf	irmed Qua	ntity: 0 E	A	Total Backo	rdered Qu	antity: 0 E	A		
	Line	Ship	Qty	Supplier B	atch ID	Produc	ction Date	Ex	piry Date	
	1	20.0	000							Add Details
	Add S	hip Notice	e Line							
							Save		Exit	Next

 When viewing your order details again, you should see a Shipped or Partially Shipped order status, and the ship notice linked under Related Documents.

To: ACME Inc 1111 Main St Vancouver BC V2P 5G8 Canada Phone: +1 (604) 111-1111 Fax: Email: ACMESales@gmail.com



Routing Status: Acknowledged External Document Type: BCH Fixed PO (NB) Related Documents: Conf1234 PS7890

FAILED ORDERS

You may notice the occasional order in your Ariba account showing **Failed Routing Status**. This means Ariba was unable to complete order routing according to the <u>Electronic Order Routing settings in your Ariba</u> <u>Network account</u>. While failed orders are rare, it's important to correct the issue and resend the orders right away as you can't submit invoices or receive updates for a failed order.

The Ariba Network recommends that you check for failed orders each time you sign into your account. Be sure your purchase order result panel displays the Routing Status column so you can easily locate any failed orders. If needed, you can add the column to your display.

 From the Navigation Bar, click on Orders > Purchase Orders.



Click on the settings icon, then drag and drop the Routing Status heading from the Available Columns to the Displayed Columns.

			Resend Failed Or	ders 📔	
Order Number	Customer	Amount	Date 🕇	Routing Status	Order Status
4500082864	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	\$1800 CAD	Apr 23, 2024	Acknowledged	Partially Invoiced
4500082865	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	\$1800 CAD	Apr 23, 2024	Failed	Serviced
4500082866	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	\$598.08 CAD	Apr 23, 2024	Acknowledged	Invoiced
4500090860	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	\$76331.45 CAD	Apr 30, 2024	Sent	Partially Serviced
4500090861	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	\$2476.19 CAD	May 2, 2024	Failed	New

Why Orders Fail

Order routing can fail due to temporary server/connectivity issues, but it's more common when electronic order routing email addresses or server settings are incorrect, or when the receiving mailboxes are full. Refer to the <u>Electronic Order Routing</u> section to check your settings, and correct them if necessary.

Once the failure condition has been corrected or resolved, you'll need to resend any failed orders to enable invoicing and order updates again.

Resending Failed Orders

Ariba provides 2 ways for you to resend failed orders. You can resend a single order or you can resend all failed orders.

IMPORTANT: When your orders no longer show as failed, notify your BC Hydro contract administrator or buyer to resend any order changes or approved service entry sheets while the order was in failed status.

If your order remains failed despite your best efforts, please contact Ariba Customer Support for assistance.

Resend a Single Failed Order

Click on the Order Number to view the failed order.

If you don't see the **Routing Status** heading, click on **Context** to add it.

2. From the Order Details tab, click on the icon, click Resend.

Order Number	Amount	Date ↑	Routing Status	Order Status
4500082864	\$1800 CAD	Apr 23, 2024	Acknowledged	Partially Invoiced
4500082865	\$1800 CAD	Apr 23, 2024	Failed	Serviced

Purchase Ord	er: 4500082	865		Done
Create Order	Confirmation 👻		<u>+</u>	e
Order Detail	Order History	/		Hide
😗 BC	Hydro			
From: Customer B.C. HYDRO Acco	ounts Payable	To: SES First 1 333 Dunsr	fest Supplier nuir St.	Purchase Order (Serviced)
Customer	ounts Payable Amount	SES First		
Customer B.C. HYDRO Acco		SES First 1 333 Dunsr	nuir St.	(Serviced)

 A successfully resent order will show as Sent.

Resend All Failed Orders

- From your Ariba Navigation Bar, select Orders > Purchase Orders.
- 2. click Resend Failed Orders.

- SAP Business Network - Enterprise Account Orders ~ Workbench Home Enablement Fulfillment ~ Invoices ~ Payments Orders 47 ()Items to confirm Items to ship Return items Orders Last 31 days Last 31 days Last 31 days Last 31 days Las Orders (42) > Edit filter | Last 31 days Resend Failed Orders Date 🗸 Order Number Customer Amount 4500052069 BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST \$3,810.86 CAD Oct 24, 2022
- Use Date Range to look for new failed orders.
 For example, check for orders that failed in the Last 24 hours, Last 7 days, etc.
- 4. Click **Search** to see failed orders, if any.

Resend Failed Ord	ers			
Search Failed Orders	5			
▼ Search Filters				
Customer:	All Customers		\sim	
Order Number:			(i)	
	Partial number	Exact numb	er	
Buyer Location Code:			(i)	
Show orders by:	Creation Date	Inquiry Date		
Date Range:	Last 31 days 🗸			
	23 Mar 2021 - 22 Ap	or 2021		
	Number of Results:	100	~	Search

 From your search results, select the orders to resend and click **Resend**, OR click **Resend** All to resend all orders listed.

If you don't see the **Routing Status** heading, click on the **click** icon to add it.

IMPORTANT: If the above actions don't fix the issue, please create an order confirmation for the purchase order. Refer to the <u>Confirm or Reject</u> <u>Order</u> section for instructions.

Order Number	Version	Customer	Amount	Date	Order Status Ro	uting Status ↓
4500058805	5	BC Hydro	\$34,758.00 CAD	Nov 24, 2022	Partially Serviced	Failed
4500002065	3	BC Hydro	\$576,700.00 CAD	Nov 12, 2022	Changed	Failed
L Res	end	Resend All	1			Done

Submitting Your Invoice

Once the order has been fulfilled, you can start the invoicing process. At BC Hydro, we have two invoicing processes for services orders and one invoicing process for materials orders. Look to the **Terms and Conditions** section of your order.

IMPORTANT: Be sure to use the right invoicing process to ensure smooth processing and on-time payments

 If you see the SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS and INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS below, refer to the Services Sheet First (SESF) Services Invoicing section for invoicing instructions.

SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS:

Once services have been rendered, email the Payment Request to the BC Hydro Contract Administrator for creation of the Service Sheet(s). Once approved, the Service Sheet(s) details will be transmitted to Ariba Network and the corresponding Ariba PO will be updated.

INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS:

Submit an Invoice from Ariba only after the PO in Ariba Network shows that goods have been received and/or the services have been accepted by BC Hydro.

 If you see the SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS and INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS below, refer to the <u>Invoice First Services (IF) Invoicing</u> section for invoicing instructions.

SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS:

Submit an Ariba Invoice after the services have been rendered for BC Hydro. This will auto-generate a Service Sheet that will be transmitted to BC Hydro for approval. Once the Service Sheet is approved, Ariba Network will automatically transmit the Ariba Invoice to BC Hydro.

INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS:

For material items, submit an Invoice after the PO in Ariba Network shows that goods have been received. For service items, submit an Ariba Invoice after the services have been rendered for BC Hydro. This will auto-generate a Service Sheet that will be transmitted to BC Hydro for approval. Once the Service Sheet is approved, Ariba Network will automatically transmit the Ariba Invoice to BC Hydro.

If you see the INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS below, refer to the <u>Materials Invoicing</u> section for invoicing instructions.

INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS:

Submit an Invoice from Ariba only after the PO in Ariba Network shows that goods have been received and/or the services have been accepted by BC Hydro.

SERVICE SHEET FIRST (SESF) SERVICES INVOICING

Look to the **Terms and Conditions** section of your order. If you see these **SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS** and **INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS**, you'll need to use the **SESF Services Invoicing Process** for the order.

SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS:

Once services have been rendered, email the Payment Request to the BC Hydro Contract Administrator for creation of the Service Sheet(s). Once approved, the Service Sheet(s) details will be transmitted to Ariba Network and the corresponding Ariba PO will be updated.

INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS:

Submit an Invoice from Ariba only after the PO in Ariba Network shows that goods have been received and/or the services have been accepted by BC Hydro.

For this invoicing process, you'll need to email your pro forma invoice to your BC Hydro contract administrator once the services have been rendered. The contract administrator will create a Service Sheet (SES). If you've set up for <u>Service Sheet Notification Emails</u>, you'll receive an Ariba email alert when the SES is approved. Now you can submit your invoice from Ariba for payment as per agreed payment terms.



Search by Service Sheet Number

Once your SES has been approved, you should receive an email from Ariba or from your BC Hydro contract administrator with the service sheet number you'll need to find the SES for invoicing. If you didn't receive notification or don't recall the service sheet number, see <u>Search Without Service Sheet Number</u> instead.

 From the Navigation Bar, click on Fulfillment > Service Sheets.



2. Expand the Search Filters.

Enter the full **Service Sheet Number**, select **Exact number**, then click **Search** to display your search results.

Home	Workbench	Orders 🗸	Fulfillment V	Invoices 🗸	Payments 🗸
Serv	ice Sheets				
	Search Filter	S			
		Customer:	All Customers		\sim
	Service Sh	eet Number:*			
	Match Service Sheet	Number By: (Partial number	Exact number	
				Search	Reset

- The service sheet status should show as Approved (ready for invoicing).
- Click on the service sheet number review it for correctness
- if correct, click Create Invoice to create the invoice
- If incorrect, please contact your BC Hydro contract administrator

Service Sheet: 1000464404		
Create Invoice Copy SES		
Detail History		
Service Sheet (Approved) 1000464404 Date: 24 Nov 2022 Final Service Sheet: No Purchase Order: 4500058805 Subtotal: \$11.00 CAD Service Start Date: 24 Nov 2022 Service End Date: 25 Nov 2022		Subtotal: \$11.00 CAD
From ACME Supplies Ltd	To BC Hydro and Power Author	Supplier 4500058805 Reference:

Search Without Service Sheet Number

You can still locate the service sheet for invoicing even if you don't have the service sheet number; it'll just take a few extra steps.

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Fulfillment > Service Sheets.
- 2. Click the **Table Menu Options** icon.

Home	Enablement	Workbench O	rders 🗸 🛛 Fulfilli	ment v Invoices	~	Create 🗸 🛛 🚥
Service	e Sheets					
▶ \$	Search Filters					
Se	ervice Sheets (1	167)			Page 1	~ » II
	Service Sheet	# Related PO	Date ↓	Amount	Routing Status	Status
	1000464404	4500058805	24 Nov 2022	\$11.00 CAD	Acknowledged	Approved
	1000464403	4500058804	24 Nov 2022	\$3.00 CAD	Acknowledged	Approved
	1000464236	4500058770	5 Nov 2022	\$950.00 CAD	Acknowledged	Rejected
	1000464234	4500058780	5 Nov 2022	\$950.00 CAD	Acknowledged	Partially Invoiced

- From Table Menu Options, select the Status option in the Group by Column section.
- Show / Hide Columns Service Sheets Service Sheet # Customer Search Filters Related PO ✓ Date Service Sheets (167) Amount ✓ Routing Status Service Sheet # Related PO Date 👃 An ✓ Status 1000464404 4500058805 24 Nov 2022 \$1 Group by Column 1000464403 4500058804 24 Nov 2022 \$ Routing Status 1000006456 4500001642 14 Nov 2022 \$9 Status 1000006453 4500001642 14 Nov 2022
- The service sheets will now be grouped by their Status. Expand the Approved grouping to view all approved service sheets.
- Click the first service sheet number to view the service sheet details.

Tip: If the amount showing for a service sheet is materially different from the invoice amount, it's not the service sheet you need and you can skip it.

- Look at the Supplier Reference field. This is typically the invoice number of the pro forma invoice you had provided to the BC Hydro Contract Admin for service sheet creation.
- Review the Service Sheet for correctness
- If correct, and this is the invoice you wish to submit, click Create Invoice.
- If incorrect, please contact your BC Hydro contract administrator

S	ervice Sheets (167)			
	Service Sheet #	Related PO	Date ↓	Amount
⊳	Status: Approved (74)			
⊳	Status: Invoiced (52)			
⊳	Status: Partially Invoiced (6)			
⊳	Status: Rejected (35)			

Service Sheet #	Related PO	Date ↓	Amount	Routing Status
1000464404	4500058805	24 Nov 2022	\$11.00 CAD	Acknowledged
1000464403	4500058804	24 Nov 2022	\$3.00 CAD	Acknowledged

Service Sheet: 1000464404		
Create Invoice Copy SES		
Detail History		
Service Sheet (Approved) 1000464404 Date: 24 Nov 2022 Final Service Sheet: No Purchase Order: 4500058805 Subtotal: \$11.00 CAD		Subtotal: \$11.00 CAD
Service Start Date: 24 Nov 2022 Service End Date: 25 Nov 2022		
From ACME Supplies Ltd	To BC Hydro and Power Author	Supplier 4500058805 Reference:

Submit Your Services Invoice

When you are ready to invoice click on the **Create Invoice** button which will open up the panel where you can complete the invoice details and submit it for payment.

1. From the **Create Invoice**

panel, enter the **Invoice #**.

- Limited to 11 characters.
- Capital letters and numbers only.
- No special characters or spaces.
- 2. Enter the **Invoice Date**.
- Supplier Tax ID is auto populated from your Company Profile. See <u>TAX</u> <u>ID Number</u>.
- Click Add to Header, then click Attachment. Click Choose File to find your PDF invoice copy, then click Add Attachment.

IMPORTANT: Be sure to attach your PDF invoice copy. Submissions with incorrect or missing PDF invoice copies will be rejected.

The PDF file name can only include letters and numbers. Special characters and spaces in the file name are not allowed and will cause your invoice to be rejected. See <u>Invoice</u> <u>Status & Rejection Reasons</u> for more information.

 The attached file should now show on your screen. If it's not the correct file, select it and click Delete and redo the steps above to attach the correct file.

reate Invoice		Update		Save	Exit	Next
 Invoice Header 			* Indical	tes required field	Add	I to Header 🔻
Summary						
Purchase Order:	4500010706				Subtotal: Total Tax:	\$10.00 CAD \$1.20 CAD
Invoice #:*	1				ss Amount:	\$11.20 CAD
Invoice Date:*	3 May 2021				et Amount: nount Due:	
Service Description:						
Supplier Tax ID:*	44444444					
Remit To	BC Hydro	~				

Add to Header 🔻	
Shipping Documents	
Discount	
Additional Reference Documents and Dates	-
Comment	
Attachment	
	1
Attachments	
The total size of all attachments cannot exceed	100MB
Choose File No file chosen Add Attack	nment

Attachments		
The total size of all attachments c	annot exceed 100MB	
Choose File No file chosen	Add Attachment	
Name	Size (bytes)	Content Type
Job 16770 Invoice.pdf	737046	application/pdf
L Delete		

- 6. Scroll down to the Line Items section.
- Ensure the Include toggle is Blue for each line item to be invoiced.
- The Tax Category is required for each line item to be invoiced.
 - Review the category and adjust as needed.
 - If the category has not been specified, select one that's appropriate for the line item.
 - DO NOT change the Taxable Amount directly as this amount is calculated from the Tax Category.
- Click on Update to refresh the screen, then click Next check the invoice before submitting.
- 10. Review the Tax Summary, the

Invoice Summary, and ensure your invoice copy is attached.

- Ensure your invoice matches the value of the SES, PO and back up documentation.
- For SES questions or changes, contact the BC Hydro contract administrator named on the order.
- If you're not ready to submit the invoice, you can Save it and submit it later, or Exit to start anew when you're ready.
- 11. When ready, click **Submit** to submit your invoice for processing.

Line	Items			
Insert L	Line Item Options	s Category:	12% HBC / 7% PST, 5% G	IST V Discount
	Include	Туре	Part #	Description
•	10		UNAVAILABLE	BSY CREW MATERIALS, TOOLS AND SAFETY SUP
		SERVICE		P1 General Industrial Supplies (GST&PST)

	Include	Туре	Part #	Description	Quantity	Unit	Unit Price	Subtotal
•	10		UNAVAILABLE	BSY CREW MATERIALS, TOOLS AND SAFETY SUP				
		SERVICE		P1 General Industrial Supplies (GST&PST)	10	LE	\$1 CAD	\$10.00 CAD
Service S	Sheet Detai	ils		ce Sheet #: 1000099838 er: 4440002949			Service L	ine No.: 10
Тах			Catego		Taxable A	mount:	\$10.00 CA	D
			Locati	Taxes	Tax Rate	е Туре:		
			Descripti	12% HBC / 7% PST, 5% GST			12.000 \$1.20 CAD	
			Regir		Tax A	mount:	\$1.20 CAD	
				7% PST / 7% PST, GST N/A				
				5% GPA / PST Self Assess, 5% GST				
Cor	mments						li	
	Include	Туре	Part #	Description	Quantity	Ur	nit Unit Pri	ce Subtotal
	\bigcirc	SERVICE		P6 General Industrial Supplies (no Tax)	0	LE	\$1 C	AD \$0 CAD
Excl	luded line i	items canno	ot be modified.					
	Line It	em Action	s 🔻 Dele	te Reset Tax from PO				
				Update	ave	E×	it	Next

x Details:						
Tax Category	Tax Rate	Tax Rate Type	Taxable Amount	Tax Amount	Tax Location	Description
HBC	12%		\$5.00 CAD	\$0.60 CAD		7% PST, 5% GST
GST	596		\$2.00 CAD	\$0.10 CAD		PST Exempt, 5% GST
NOT IVOICE Sumn	o% nary		\$3.00 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	Subtotal: \$	
NOT NVOICE Sumn			\$3.00 CAD	Total	Subtotal: \$ Total Tax: Gross Amount: \$ Amount Due: \$	10.00 CAD \$0.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD
	nary		\$3.00 CAD	Total	Total Tax: Gross Amount: \$ al Net Amount: \$	10.00 CAD \$0.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD
nvoice Sumn	nary		Co	Total	Total Tax: Gross Amount: \$ al Net Amount: \$	10.00 CAD \$0.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD

- You will receive confirmation of your invoice submission. Click Exit to return to your order.
- The invoice will appear as a related documents on your order.
- See <u>Invoice</u>, <u>Payment & Remittance</u> <u>Status</u> for help on track the invoice status, view scheduled payments and remittance details.

IMPORTANT: If your invoice is incorrect or is missing required supporting documentation, the generated invoice will be rejected and the status will show as **Rejected** in Ariba. See <u>Invoice Status & Rejection</u> <u>Reasons</u> for more information.

Invoice 1234567 has	been submitted	
Print a copy of the Exit invoice creatio	invoice.	
Purchase Order: 450001070		
Create Order Confirmation 🔻	Create Ship Notice Cre	ate Service Sheet Create Invoice V
Order Detail Order History		
🕀 BC Hydro		
From: B.C. HYDRO Accounts Payable 6911 SOUTHPOINT DRIVE BURNABY British Columbia V3N 4X8 Canada	To: SES First Test Supplier 333 Dunsmuir St. Vancouver BC V6B 5R3 Canada Phone: +1 (604) 222-2000 Fax: Email: :	Purchase Order (Partially Serviced) 4500010706 Amount: \$198,647.95 CAD Version: 1
Payment Terms () 1.500% 15 0.000% 30 1.5% 15 Net Due 30 Days Comments ORIGINAL ORDER #: C1105630089		Routing Status: Acknowledged External Document Type: BCH Flex.Blanket PO Effective Date: 1 Jun 2020 Expiration Date: 31 May 2025 Related Documents: 1234567 1000099839 More(2) »
PO REVISION: 0		wore(2) »

INVOICE FIRST (IF) SERVICES INVOICING

Look to the **Terms and Conditions** section of your order. If you see the **SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS** and **INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS** below, you'll need to invoice for this order using the **Invoice First Services Invoicing Process.**

SERVICE ENTRY INSTRUCTIONS:

Submit an Ariba Invoice after the services have been rendered for BC Hydro. This will auto-generate a Service Sheet that will be transmitted to BC Hydro for approval. Once the Service Sheet is approved, Ariba Network will automatically transmit the Ariba Invoice to BC Hydro.

INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS:

For material items, submit an Invoice after the PO in Ariba Network shows that goods have been received. For service items, submit an Ariba Invoice after the services have been rendered for BC Hydro. This will auto-generate a Service Sheet that will be transmitted to BC Hydro for approval. Once the Service Sheet is approved, Ariba Network will automatically transmit the Ariba Invoice to BC Hydro.

With this invoicing process, you can submit your invoice from Ariba once services have been rendered. Upon invoice submission, Ariba will automatically generate a service sheet for BC Hydro for approval. Once approved, payment will be issued as per the agreed payment terms.



1. From the Navigation Bar, click on Orders > Purchase Orders.

to invoice. See Search for Orders.

correct one for your invoice.

4.



5. Click Create Invoice > Standard Invoice.

Review the entire order to ensure this is the

6. Disable and close the warning message if it appears.





- From the Create Invoice panel, enter a unique Invoice #
 - Limited to 11 characters.
 - Capital letters and numbers only.
 - No special characters or spaces.
- 8. Note the **Invoice Date** can't be changed.
- Supplier Tax ID is auto populated from your Company Profile. See <u>TAX ID Number</u>.
- Click Add to Header, then click Attachment.
 Click Choose File to find your PDF invoice copy, then click Add Attachment.

IMPORTANT: Be sure to attach your PDF invoice copy. **Submissions with incorrect or missing PDF invoice copies will be rejected.**

The PDF file name can only include letters and numbers. Special characters and spaces in the file name are not allowed and will cause your invoice to be rejected. See <u>Invoice Status &</u> <u>Rejection Reasons</u> for more information.

11. The attached file should now show on your screen. If it's not the correct file, select it and click **Delete** and redo the steps above to attach the correct file.

Create Invoice	Update Save Exit Next
 Invoice Header 	* Indicates required field Add to Header 🔻
Summary Purchase Order: 45000908	67
Invoice #:* 123456A	Subtotal: \$727,538.20 CA Total Tax: \$36,376.92 CA
Invoice Date: (i) 12 Jun 20	24 Total Gross Amount: \$763,915.12 CA
Service Description:	Total Net Amount: \$763,915.12 C/ Amount Due: \$763,915.12 C/
Final Service Sheet:	
Supplier Tax ID:* 5555555	55
Remit To: Invoice Fir	st Tost Supplie

Add to Header 🔻					
Shipping Documents					
Discount					
Additional Reference Do	cuments and Dates				
Comment					
Attachment					
Attachments					
The total size of all attachments	s cannot exceed 100MB				

Attachments		
The total size of all attachments ca	nnot exceed 100MB	
Choose File No file chosen	Add Attachment	
Name	Size (bytes)	Content Type
Job 16770 Invoice.pdf	737046	application/pdf
L Delete		

 Scroll down to the Line Items section and review each line.

By default, all line items and remaining quantities from your order are included in your invoice. You may need to manually adjust the default quantities and/or exclude service lines from your invoice.

- Use the toggle to include/exclude each line for your invoice. Be careful as many service lines may be quite similar except for their tax treatment.
 - Included lines will show a Blue toggle.
 - **Excluded** line items will show a **Clear** toggle.
- Adjust the Quantity for each included service item line to your pre-tax amount.

This example below shows \$1,000.00 entered as a quantity of 1000 units at \$1.00/unit.

 Taxes are pre-assigned to the service lines so please do not change the defaulted Tax Category.

If the Tax Category or Tax Amount showing is incorrect, contact your BC Hydro Contract Administrator right away.

16. If instructed by your BC Hydro contact, update the **Description** of the service line text to aid with invoice approval. For example, add work location, dates or crew information.

sert Line i	tem uption	s			
	[Tax Categ	Jory: 12	296 HBC / 796 PST,	5% GST 🗸 Discount
	No.	Include	Туре	Part #	Description
•	10			UNAVAILABLE	Forecasted PO Distribution Edmonds UG
	No.	Include	Туре	Part #	Description
	10.10		SERVICE	UNAVAILABLE	TRAFFIC,Traffic MGMT Services
Pricin	g Details			Price Unit: ACT	
Servio	e Period		Service St	tart Date:	
Тах			C	ategory:* GST	~
				cription:	tempt, 5% GST
			Des	DOT D	rempt, 5% GST
1	No.	Include	Des	cription: PST Ex	Description

No.	Include	Туре	Part #		Description	Cus	tomer Part #	Quantity	Unit	Unit Price	Subtotal
10.10		SERVICE	UNAVAIL	ABLE	TRAFFIC, Traffic MGMT Services		9000173	1,00	ACT	\$1 CAD	\$1,000.00 CAD
Pricing De	etails		ice Unit: wersion:				F	Price Unit Qu Desc	uantity: ription:	1.000	
Service P	eriod	Service St	art Date:		Ē	Ser	vice End Date				
Тах		С	ategory:*	GST	\sim		Taxable Ar	nount: \$	1,000.00	CAD]
		L	ocation:				Tax Rate	Type:]
		Des	cription:	PST E	xempt, 5% GST		Ra	te(%): 5.	.000]
		0	Regime:		~		Tax Ar	nount: S	50.00 CA	1D]

- 17. After adjusting the quantities for your invoice lines, scroll to the bottom of the screen and click **Update** to refresh the service line totals, then click **Next** to review your invoice before submitting.
- 18. Review the Tax Summary, subtotals and totals, ensure your PDF invoice copy and other required supporting documents are attached.

If you're not ready to submit the invoice, you can Save it and submit it later, or Exit to start anew.

- 19. When ready, click **Submit** to submit your invoice for processing.
- 20. You will receive confirmation of your invoice submission. Click Exit to return to your order.
- 21. Both the invoice and auto-created service entry sheet (SES) will appear as related documents on your order
- 22. See Invoice, Payment & Remittance Status for help with tracking the invoice status, and viewing scheduled payments and remittance details.

IMPORTANT: If your invoice is incorrect or is missing required supporting documentation, the generated SES will be rejected and the invoice will show as Rejected in Ariba. See Invoice Status & Rejection Reasons for more information.

	Update	Save	Exit	Next
--	--------	------	------	------

Tax Details:					
Tax Category	Tax Rate	Tax Rate Type	Taxable Amount	Tax Amount Tax Locatio	n Description
HBC	12%		\$5.00 CAD	\$0.60 CAD	7% PST, 5% GST
GST	5%		\$2.00 CAD	\$0.10 CAD	PST Exempt, 5% GST
NOT NVOICE SUMM	0% nary		\$3.00 CAD	5.75.777.0.807.5	No Taxes
NOT NVOICE Summ			\$3.00 CAD	Subtotal Total Tax Total Gross Amount Total Net Amount	\$10.00 CAD \$0.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD
	nary		\$3.00 CAD	Subtotal Total Tax Total Gross Amount Total Net Amount	\$10.00 CAD \$0.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD
nvoice Summ	nary		Con	Subtotal Total Tax Total Gross Amount Total Net Amount	\$10.00 CAD \$0.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD \$10.70 CAD

Enterprise Account

Invoice 1234567 has been submitted.

Print a copy of the invoice.

Business Network

Exit invoice creation.

SAP

Create Order Confirmation	Create Ship Notice	Create Service Sheet Create	Invoice 🔻
Order Detail Order H	listory		
🕕 BC Hyd	ro		
From: Customer B.C. HYDRO Accounts Payab B911 SOUTHPOINT DRIVE BURNABY British Columbia V Canada Phone: + () 604-663-3572 Fax:	To: Invoice First Test Supplier 210 Sixth AVE Pitsburgh, PA 15201 United States Phone: Fax: Email: noreply@ariba.com	Purchase Order (Partially Serviced) 4500052067 Amount: \$3,000,00 CAD Version: 1	
Payment Terms (1) 0.000% 30 NET DUE 30 DAYS		Routing Status: Acknowl External Document Type: BCH Fix Related Documents: 1234567	ed PO (NB) 7_SS_1

MATERIALS INVOICING

Look to the **Terms and Conditions** section of your order. If you see the **INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS** below, you'll need to invoice for this order using the **Materials Invoicing Process.**

INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS:

Submit an Invoice from Ariba only after the PO in Ariba Network shows that goods have been received and/or the services have been accepted by BC Hydro.

Although the instructions advise you to submit your invoice after the goods are received, you're welcome to submit invoices as soon as the goods are shipped. We will issue payment as per payment terms once the invoice and the goods are received in our system.



 From the Navigation Bar, click on Orders > Purchase Orders.



- Expand the Edit filter to find the order to invoice. See <u>Search for Orders</u>.
- Click on the order number of the order to invoice.
- Click Create Invoice > Standard Invoice.

Orders					
42		0	0		0
Orders		Items to confirm	Items to ship	Retu	ırn items
Last 31 days		Last 31 days	Last 31 days	Last	t 31 days
Orders (42) Edit filter	Last	31 days			
> Edit filter				mount	Date J
		31 days ustomer	,	mount	Date ↓
> Edit filter	Cu				Date ↓ Oct 24, 2022

urchase Orde	er: 4500051964	
Create Order C	Confirmation arrow Create Ship Notice	Create Invoice ⊽
		Standard Invoice
Order Detail	Order History	Line-Item Credit Memo
		Line-Item Debit Memo

5. In the Create Invoice

panel, enter the Invoice #

- Limited to 11 characters.
- Capital letters and numbers only.
- No special characters or spaces.
- 6. Enter the Invoice Date.
- Supplier Tax ID is auto populated from your Company Profile. See <u>TAX</u> <u>ID Number</u>.
- Click Add to Header, then click Attachment. Click Choose File to find your PDF invoice copy, then click Add Attachment.

IMPORTANT: Be sure to attach your PDF invoice copy. **Submissions with incorrect or missing PDF invoice copies will be rejected.**

The PDF file name can only include letters and numbers. Special characters and spaces in the file name are not allowed and will cause your invoice to be rejected. See <u>Invoice Status &</u> <u>Rejection Reasons</u> for more information.

 The attached file should now show on your screen. If it's not the correct file, select it and click Delete and redo the steps above to attach the correct file.

Create Invoice	Update	Save	Exit		Next
 Invoice Header 		* Indicates requ	iired field	Add 1	to Header 🔻
Summary				View/	Edit Addresses
Purchase Order: Invoice #:*	4500052064		Total Gross		\$2.00 CAD \$42.00 CAD
Invoice Date:*				Amount: unt Due:	\$42.00 CAD \$42.00 CAD
Service Description:					
Supplier Tax ID:*					
Remit To	BC Hydro	\sim			

Add to Header 🔻	
Shipping Documents	
Discount	
Additional Reference Documents and Dates	
Comment	
Attachment	
	J
Attachments	
The total size of all attachments cannot exceed	100M

Choose File No file chosen

Attachments		
The total size of all attachments	cannot exceed 100MB	
Choose File No file chosen	Add Attachment	
Name	Size (bytes)	Content Type
Job 16770 Invoice.pdf	737046	application/pdf
L, Delete		

Add Attachment

 Scroll down to the Line Items section and review each line.

By default, all line items and remaining quantities from your order are included in your invoice. You may need to manually adjust the defaulted quantities and/or exclude line items from your invoice.

- Use the toggle to include/exclude materials lines for your invoice. Be careful as many lines can be quite similar.
 - **Included** lines will should show a **Blue** toggle.
 - Excluded line items will show a Clear toggle.
- If needed, adjust the Quantity for each included materials line to match what you've shipped.

Contact your BC Hydro representative or Buyer for price discrepancies.

13. Review the Tax Category for each line

item to be invoiced, and adjust if needed.

- DO NOT change the Taxable Amount directly as this amount is calculated from the Tax Category.
- Contact your BC Hydro representative if applicable freight or special charges are missing.
- Click on Update to refresh the screen, then click Next.

Line	e Items					
Insert	Line Item	Options	Tax Category:	100/ 1100 / 2	24 DOT 544 COT	Shipp
			Tax Gategory.	12% HBC / /	% PST, 5% GST	
	No.	Include	Туре	Part #	Description	
	10		MATERIAL	UNAVAILABLE	GGM 1VFV7 HEX B	USHING, RED BRASS
	Pricing	Details		Price Unit:	EA	
				Unit Conversion:	1	
	No.	Include	Туре	Part #	Description	
	10	Ø	MATERIAL	UNAVAILABLE	GGM 1VFV7 HEX BU	USHING, RED BRASS

	Tax Cate	egory: 12% H	HBC / 7% PST, 5% G	st 🗸	Shippir	ng Documents
No. Include	Туре	Part #	Description		Custo	mer Part # G
10 🥌	MATERIAL	UNAVAILABLE	GGM 1VFV7 HEX	K BUSHING, RED BF	ASS 98010	0000
Pricing Details		Price U Unit Conversi			Pric	ce Unit Quantity Description
No. Inclu	de Type	Part #	Description		Cust	tomer Part #
10	MATER	AL UNAVAILAB	GGM 1VFV7	HEX BUSHING, RED	BRASS 980	10000
Pricing Details		Price UNIT Convers	Jnit: EA	HEX BUSHING, REC	9 BRASS 980;	10000 Price Unit Qua Descri
Pricing Details	egory:* HBC	Price L Unit Convers	Jnit: EA	7	BRASS 980:	Price Unit Qua
Pricing Details	egory:* HBC 7% F	Price L Unit Convers PST, 5% GST	Jnit: EA ion: 1	Taxablı Tax		Price Unit Qua Descri
Pricing Details Tax Cat	egory:* HBC 7% F cation: 5	Price L Unit Convers	Jnit: EA ion: 1	∕ Taxablı [,] Ta	cable Amount:	Price Unit Qua Descri

15. Review the Tax Summary, the

subtotals and totals, and ensure your

invoice copy is attached.

- Ensure your invoice matches the value of the Line Items, order and back up documentation.
- For questions about the Line Items or changes to the order, contact the BC Hydro Buyer or Hydro Rep named on the order.
- If you're not ready to submit the invoice, you can Save it and submit it later, or Exit to start anew when you're ready.
- When ready, click Submit to submit your invoice for processing.
- You will receive confirmation of your invoice submission. Click Exit to return to your order.
- The invoice will appear as a related document on your order.
- See <u>Invoice</u>, <u>Payment & Remittance</u>
 <u>Status</u> for help on track the invoice status, view scheduled payments and remittance details.

IMPORTANT: If your invoice is incorrect or is missing required supporting documentation, the generated SES will be rejected and the invoice will show as **Rejected** in Ariba. See <u>Invoice Status & Rejection</u> <u>Reasons</u> for more information.

ax Details:						
Tax Category	Tax Rate	Tax Rate Type	Taxable Amount	Tax Amount	Tax Location	Description
HBC	12%		\$5.00 CAD	\$0.60 CAD		7% PST, 5% GST
GST	5%		\$2.00 CAD	\$0.10 CAD		PST Exempt, 5% GST
NOT	0%		\$3.00 CAD	\$0.00 CAD		No Taxes
nvoice Sumn	nary				Subtotal: \$2	
nvoice Sumn	nary					\$0.70 CAD 10.70 CAD 10.70 CAD
nvoice Sumn	-				Total Tax: 5 Gross Amount: 5 al Net Amount: 5	\$0.70 CAD 10.70 CAD 10.70 CAD
	-		Cor		Total Tax: 5 Gross Amount: 5 al Net Amount: 5	\$0.70 CAD 10.70 CAD 10.70 CAD



Invoice, Payment & Remittance Status

Once an invoice is submitted, you can view its payment status and take advantage of Early Payment Offers.

FIND A SUBMITTED INVOICE

Follow these steps to find your invoice to view its status, scheduled payment date, and Early Payment Offers.

 From the Navigation Bar, click on Invoices > Invoices.

Invoices from the **last 31 days** are automatically displayed. If you don't see the invoice you need, expand **Edit filter** to search by invoice number, another date range, or other criteria.

 If you know the exact invoice number, enter it into the Invoice number box and select Exact match.

Otherwise, select **Partial Number** to search by other criteria such as a **partial invoice number**, **invoice date**, **amounts**, etc.

3. Click **Apply** to see the search results.

If you don't see your invoice, check to ensure the **Invoice date** range is correct.

- The search results will display summarized invoice details along with the invoice status and schedule payment date.
 - Credit memos show a negative (-) amount.
 - If you don't see these headings, click the click the



Customers	Invoice number	External invoice number	Invoice date	Payment net due date
Select or type selections	Type selection	Type selection	Last 31 days 🔍	None ~
	Partial match Exact match			
nvoice type	Invoice status	Status change date	Order number	From country
All	All	None ~	Type selection	Select or type selections
To country	Min amount Max amount Currency	Submitted by	View	Routing status
Select or type selections	CAD 🗸	All 🗸	All 🗸	All

Invoices (3)		ays				
						· 🕒
Invoice Number	Customer	Reference	Invoiced Date \downarrow	Amount	Invoice Status	Payment net due dat
INV409286	BC Hvdro	4500052064	Oct 24, 2022	\$31.50 CAD	Approved	Nov 23, 2022
TEST240CT	BC Hydro	4500052697	Oct 24, 2022	\$4.68 CAD	Sent	Nov 23, 2022
ARIBATEST1	BC Hydro	4500052061	Oct 19, 2022	\$2.48 CAD	Paid	Nov 19, 2022
Click on the invoice number to view invoice, payment and remittance details, and to accept Early Payment Offers on Approved payments.

INVOICE STATUS & REJECTION REASONS

An invoice's status tells you how payment is progressing. If you've set up for <u>Electronic Invoice Routing</u> <u>notification emails</u>, you'll receive an email alert each time your invoice(s) status is updated.

There are six key invoice statuses.

Status	Description	Action
Sent	Your invoice has been submitted to BC Hydro for processing which can take 5-10 business days to complete.	If the invoice remains in Sent status beyond 10 business days, review the invoice's History tab for more information. If the History tab shows the invoice is Parked , then we're still working to resolve an invoice variance. No action is required of you. Once the variance is resolved, the invoice will move to Approved status.
		If the invoice is not Parked , contact <u>AccountsPayable@bchydro.com</u> .
Approved	The invoice has been approved. Payment is scheduled as per the agreed payment terms.	You can view the scheduled payment details and consider accepting <u>Early Payment Offers</u> .
Paid	Payment has been issued.	Review the <u>payment remittance details</u> . If you've set up for <u>Settlements Email Notification</u> , you'll receive your payment advice by email.
Rejected	 The invoice can't be processed and has been returned to you. Common reasons include: Duplicate invoice Missing supporting documentation Invoice quantity/amount/taxes differ from the PO 	Look for Ariba and BC Hydro emails explaining the <u>rejection reasons</u> and steps to resubmit.
On Hold	The materials invoice can't be processed due to a variance in price or quantity, or the goods receipt has not been acknowledged.	Contact the buyer named on your purchase order.
Failed	An Ariba Network system issue has occurred.	Contact AccountsPayable@bchydro.com.

Invoice Rejection Reasons

Invoices that can't be processed will be rejected and returned to you. If you're set up for <u>Electronic Invoice</u> <u>Routing notification emails</u>, you'll receive an Ariba alert providing the error reason and additional comments to help you rectify the issue. Once the rejection issue has been resolved, you can submit your invoice again for processing. Just remember to use a unique invoice number for your new invoice (eg. 1234A, 1234R) and always attach a PDF invoice copy, along with any other required supporting documentation, to your new Ariba invoice.

Here are some common rejection reasons, if you still need assistance, contact

AccountsPayable@bchydro.com.

Error Message/Reason	Description	Action
INV-35 User WORKFLOW already processing Purchasing doc item User ESSPROD already processing Purchasing doc item	The PO is occupied by another user. Our system doesn't allow more than one user to process on the PO at one time.	There is no need for immediate attention as the system will continuously retry over the next 3 days. If the invoice status still shows as Rejected on the 4 th day, resubmit your invoice with a unique invoice number.
Purchasing document # is not yet released Purchasing document #, version # in process	The PO is being updated and is unavailable for invoice processing.	Contact your BC Hydro representative. They can advise when the order will be ready for invoicing.
INV-167: Service sheet item # which is referenced in invoice item # has been included in other invoice.	The service sheet used for your SESF services invoice was already processed for a different invoice and can't be used again.	Select a different service sheet to use for your SESF services invoice . Contact your Contract Administrator to confirm the correct service sheet to use.
Your service sheet # for PO # item # has been rejected for the following reason: <rejection code and description></rejection 	The service sheet generated for your Invoice First services invoice was rejected by BC Hydro.	Refer to the Rejection code and decription to rectify the issue. Contact your Contract Administrator for additional assistance.

SCHEDULED PAYMENT & EARLY PAYMENT OFFER

Once an invoice is approved, it will be scheduled for payment.

You can view all upcoming payments and their scheduled payment dates by following the steps below. Some payments will be eligible for <u>Early Payment Offers</u> where you can opt for earlier payment in exchange for a payment discount.

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Payments > Scheduled Payments.
- Expand Edit filter to set your search criteria, then click Apply to view your scheduled payments.
- Click on the Payment Proposal number to view payment details. You can also <u>Review & Accept Early</u> <u>Payment Offers</u> for payments showing Eligible Early Pay Status.

lome Enal	blement Workbench Orders	✓ Fulfillment ✓ Invo				
 Need to c² 	ustomize your view of the data? Creat	e your own tiles, save filters, a	nd more by	ments ch page	. Go to Workben	ch
			Schedule	d Payments		
Payments			Remittan	ces		
\$28	88 K \$29	94 K \$	B73 Early Pay	ment Rules		
Early pay	yment offers Scheduled	d payments	Remittances			
Next	t 90 days Next 9	90 days	Last 31 days			
	a payments (15)					
> Edit filte		Scheduled Payment Date	Remaining Days	Amount Due	Status	
> Edit filte	er [Next 90 days]	Scheduled Payment Date Dec 5, 2022	Remaining Days 26	Amount Due \$1,017.15 CAD	Status On Hold	Early Pay Stat
> Edit filte	Payment Proposal					Early Pay Sta
	Payment Proposal 81002251962023001BCH1Q06	Dec 5, 2022	26	\$1,017.15 CAD	On Hold	Early Pay Stat

REMITTANCE DETAILS

You can view your payment remittances to help reconcile your accounts.

IMPORTANT: Please ensure your AR team is set up to receive remittance advice notifications as this information is only available through your Ariba account.

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Payments > Remittances.
- Expand Edit filter to set your search criteria, then click Apply to view your scheduled payments.
- Click on the Transaction number to view the remittance details.
- 4. Remittance details will show:
 - Payee name and details when you click on (Show Payee Details).
 - Remittance Advice with amount paid and payment date.
 - Invoices paid. Click on the invoice number to view the invoice details.
 - You can print or save a copy of the Remittance Advice.



	BC Hydro						
From BC Hvdro		То			MITTANCE AD 0221108.2001		
PAYER: I	BC Hydro and Power Author aver Details)	(Show Payee D	etails)		Gross Amount Discount Applied Withholding Tax	1: (\$3-	2.28 CAD 4.98 CAD) 0.00 CAD)
				Ar	-	: \$371,537.30	
						ated Settlement on 8	
aymer	nt Detail						
	Payment Method: ACH				Routing Statu	s: Sent	
F	Reference Number: 2001118464 (i)	~			Transaction Date	e: 7 Nov 2022	
	Related Payment: Z.20221108.20011	18464 ()					
	DDITIONAL INFORMATION						
AD	ntified Differences: None		Discount	Withholding Tax	Adjustment	Net Amount Paid	Scheduled Paym
AE ne Iter	ntified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110)	0	Discount \$0.00 CAD	Withholding Tax	Adjustment	Net Amount Paid \$12,392.11 CAD	Scheduled Paym
AE ne Iter Line#	ntified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110) Payable Reference	1) Gross Amount		Withholding Tax	Adjustment		Scheduled Paym
AE ne Iter Line#	Intified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110) Payable Reference Invoice: 7099842754	1) Gross Amount		Withholding Tax	Adjustment		Scheduled Paym
AE ne Iter Line#	Intified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110) Payable Reference Invoice: 7099842754 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION buyerInvoiceID: 8100224182 OriginalinvoiceKo: 7099842754	1) Gross Amount		Withholding Tax	Adjustment		Scheduled Paym
AE ne Iter Line#	Intified Differences: None DITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110) Payable Reference Invoice: 7099842754 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION buyerInvoiceID: 8100224182	1) Gross Amount		Withholding Tax	Adjustment		Scheduled Paym
AE ne Iter Line#	Intified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (Ims (110) Payable Reference Invoice: 7099842754 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION buyerInvoiceID: 7099842754 OriginalinvoiceNo: 7099842754 Company Code: BCH1	1) Gross Amount		Withholding Tax	Adjustment		Scheduled Paym
AE ne Iter Line #	ntified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110) Payable Reference Invoice: 7099842754 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION buyerInvoiceID: 8100224182 OriginalinvoiceNo: 7099842754 Company Code: BCH1 fiscalYear: 2023	Gross Amount \$12,392.11 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	Withholding Tax	Adjustment	\$12,392.11 CAD	
AE ne Iter Line #	ntified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110) Payable Reference Invoice: 7099842754 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION buyerInvoiceID: 8100224182 OriginalInvoiceNo: 7099842754 Company Code: BCH1 fiscalYear: 2023 Invoice: 9267280270	Gross Amount \$12,392.11 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	Withholding Tax	Adjustment	\$12,392.11 CAD	
AE ne Iter Line #	ntified Differences: None DDITIONAL INFORMATION (ms (110) Payable Reference Invoice: 7099842754 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION buyerInvoiceID: 8100224182 OriginalInvoiceNo: 7099842754 Company Code: BCH1 fiscalYear: 2023 Invoice: 9267280270 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	Gross Amount \$12,392.11 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	Withholding Tax	Adjustment	\$12,392.11 CAD	

Correcting or Cancelling an Invoice

If you've made an error on a submitted invoice, you can submit a credit memo from your Ariba account to cancel/offset the invoice. See the <u>Credit Memo</u> section for step by step instructions. If the credit memo is for a service-based invoice, it's important that you also notify your BC Hydro contract administrator once the credit memo has been submitted.

From time to time, BC Hydro may ask you to cancel or withdraw an invoice (eg. to amend an order, revise a service entry sheet, etc). As above, you can simply submit an Ariba credit memo to cancel the invoice.

Once the credit memo shows as **Approved**, you can submit a corrected invoice, if necessary. Just remember to use a unique invoice number for your new invoice (eg. 1234A, 1234R) and always attach a PDF credit memo/ invoice copy to your Ariba submittal.

Occasionally, your invoice may be rejected by BC Hydro despite appearing accurate and complete. The most common reasons for BC Hydro rejections are due to incorrect taxes and missing PDF invoice copies. If BC Hydro rejects your invoice:

- You'll receive an email from Ariba if you're set up for invoice status notification emails.
- Your elnvoicing contact on record with us will receive an email from our Accounts Payable team explaining the cancellation reason and steps for correction.
- Once the invoice status shows as **Rejected**, you can re-invoice according to the instructions provided.
- If you have questions about your order or your service entry sheet, contact your BC Hydro contract administrator for assistance.

Credit Memos

A credit memo can be used to adjust the **quantity** or **price** on the submitted invoice, or to cancel the invoice entirely. Because quantity adjustments are most common, we will only look at quantity adjustment credit memos here. Contact <u>AccountsPayable@bchydro.com</u> directly for assistance with price adjustments.

When you've submitted a credit memo on a service-based invoice, it's important to notify your BC Hydro contract administrator. This applies to both partial or full credits.

 From the Navigation Bar, click on Invoices > Invoices.

Invoices from the **last 31 days** are automatically displayed. If you don't see the invoice you need, expand the **Edit filter** to search by invoice number or another date range.

- Select the Invoice # for your credit memo.
- 3. Click Line-Item Credit Memo.

- Select the Credit Memo Type. You can use either type, but these steps are <u>only</u> for the more common Quantity Adjustment type.
- 5. Enter the Credit Memo #.
 - Use the original invoice number followed by **CR**.
 - Limited to 11 characters.
 - Capital letters and numbers only.
 - No spaces or special characters.
- 6. Enter the Credit Memo Date.
- Supplier Tax ID is auto populated from your Company Profile. See <u>TAX ID</u> <u>Number</u>.



Invoice Number	Customer	Reference	Invoiced Date	Amount
INV52698	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	4500052698	Sep 6, 2022	\$13.65 CAD
INV52698A	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	4500051991	Sep 6, 2022	\$10.50 CAD
INV52700	BC Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	4500052700	Sep 13, 2022	\$2,100.00 CAD

Invoice: IN	IV52700				
Create	Line-Item Credit Memo	Create Line-Item Debit Memo			
Detail	Scheduled Payments	History			
Standard	Standard Invoice				

Create Line-Item Cre	dit Memo		
Credit Memo Type	justment 🛈 🔷 Price A	idjustment ()	
 Invoice Header 			
Summary			
Credit Memo #:*	INV52700CR	Subtotal: Total Tax: Total Gross Amount:	\$-2,000.00 CAD \$-100.00 CAD \$-2 100.00 CAD
Credit Memo Date:*	14 Sep 2022	Total Net Amount:	
Original Invoice No:	INV52700		
Original Invoice Date:	13 Sep 2022		
Supplier Tax ID:*	654123954		
Remit To	BC Hydro	\checkmark	

- Scroll down to the Comment section and enter the Reason for Credit Memo.
- Click Add to Header, then select Attachment to attach a PDF copy of your credit memo.
- Click Browse to select your credit memo PDF, then click Add Attachment.

IMPORTANT: Be sure to attach your PDF invoice copy. Submissions with incorrect or missing PDF invoice copies will be rejected.

The PDF file name can only include letters and numbers. Special characters and spaces in the file name are not allowed and will cause your invoice to be rejected. See <u>Invoice Status & Rejection</u> <u>Reasons</u> for more information. Comment
Reason for Credit Memo:*
Default Credit Memo
Comment Text:

Add to Header
Discount
Attachment

Attachments
The total size of all attachments cannot exceed 10MB
Browse...
Add Attachment

- 11. Scroll down to the Line Items section.
- For each line item to include in the credit memo.
 - Click the Include button so it shows as Blue. Excluded line items should show as Clear.
 - Ensure the Quantity is a negative value, DO NOT change the Unit Price.
 - Review the Tax Category and adjust if needed.
- Click Update to refresh your changes, then click Next to review the credit memo before submitting.

nsert Line i	item uption	IS			
	[Tax Categ	gory: 12	296 HBC / 796 PST,	5% GST 🗸 Discount
	No.	Include	Туре	Part #	Description
•	10			UNAVAILABLE	Forecasted PO Distribution Edmonds UG
	No.	Include	Туре	Part #	Description
	10.10		SERVICE	UNAVAILABLE	TRAFFIC,Traffic MGMT Services
Pricin	g Details		F	Price Unit: ACT	
			Unit Co	nversion: 1	
Servio	e Period		Service St	tart Date:	
Тах			с	ategory:* GST	\sim
			L	ocation:	
			Des	cription: PST E	kempt, 5% GST
			0	Regime:	~
			7	Dent #	Description
I	No.	Include	Туре	Part #	Description

- Review the Tax Summary, the Credit Memo Summary, and ensure your credit memo copy is attached.
- 15. Click Submit.
 - Your credit memo will be linked to the order as a related document.
 - You can use Ariba's <u>Invoice Search</u> to find your credit memos. These will show as invoices with a negative (-) amount.

Tax Details:					
Tax Category	Tax Rate Tax F	Rate Type Taxable Amount	Tax Amoun	t Tax Location	Description
НВС	12%	\$-5.00 CAD	\$-0.60 CAD		7% PST, 5% GS
					\$-5.60 CAD
Attachment(s)	:				
		Content Type			
Name		application/pdf			

Early Payment Offers (EPOs)

Our EPO program allows suppliers to take early payment in exchange for a discount. All approved invoices are eligible. EPOs are easy to use, completely optional and can be accepted on an invoice-by-invoice basis. Payment discounts are applied only to the EPOs you accept; if you don't want to accept the EPO, simply ignore the offer and your invoice will be paid on your usual scheduled payment date. **EPO discounts** are based on the difference between the **scheduled payment date** and the **early payment date** selected. The calculation takes into account the appropriate dollar discount rate and the number of day's difference.

- EPOs can provide the following benefits to our suppliers:
 - Improved cash-flow control.
 - Typically, lower rates than many alternatives (e.g., P-Card, asset-based lending, bank lines of credit).
- EPOs have no impact on the payment terms in your contract.
- EPOs become available when invoices are approved in Ariba.
 - You can view available EPOs in your Ariba account. See Your Early Payment Offers.
 - You can also be notified of new EPOs via email. See <u>Set Up EPOs</u>.
- You can manually accept an EPO or <u>set up rules</u> to automatically accept EPOs based on your criteria.
- Once an EPO payment is completed, you will receive a Notice of Payment Plan Cancellation email from Ariba.
 - Because your EPO payment is now complete, this email is simply to advise that the normal scheduled payment has been cancelled.
 - If you've set up for <u>Settlement notification emails</u>, you will receive your remittance advice via email.

SET UP EPOS

From your Ariba account, you can view all EPOs and accept only those you want. Have your Ariba account administrator set up these tools to help you manage your EPOs:

- Email notifications to notify you of new EPOs.
- Rules to automatically accept EPOs based on your acceptance criteria. If an EPO doesn't meet the acceptance criteria, you can still accept it manually.

EPO Notification Emails

1. From the Navigation Bar, click on Account Settings 8 > Settings > Accelerated Payments.

twork Settings		Save
Electronic Order Routing Electron	nic Invoice Routing Accelerated Payments Settlement	
 Indicates a required field Notifications 		
Туре	Send notifications when	To email addresses (one required)
Buyer-Initiated Early Payment Offers	 Send a notification when your buyer initiates an early payment on a specific invoice. Send instantly for each payment Send a daily summary at: <u>01:00</u> Selected time: 01:00 PST 	* Jane.Doe@bchydro.com
Early Payment Offers	Send a notification when your buyer proposes a new early payment term for invoices. Once you accept apply the payment term to his/her vendor master.	t the buyer will Jane.Doe@bchydro.com

- 2. Set up Buyer-Initiated Early Payment Offers notifications:
 - Enable the notification.
 - Enter up to three email addresses, each must be separated by a comma with no spaces.
 - Select the notification frequency.
- 3. Set up Early Payment Offers notifications:
 - Enable the notification.
 - Enter up to three email addresses, each must be separated by a comma with no spaces.
- 4. Click Save.

EPO Auto-Acceptance Rules

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Account Settings Settings > Remittances.
- Click on Set up early payments autoacceptance rule. Then follow the prompts to create an auto-acceptance rule with your desired criteria.

Network Settings			Save	Close
Electronic Order Routing	Electronic Invoice Routing	Accelerated Payments	Settlement	
* Indicates a required field				
Set up early payments auto	o-acceptance rule			

YOUR EARLY PAYMENT OFFERS

When an EPO becomes available, you can view it in your Ariba account and accept if you want. If you've set up for <u>EPO notification emails</u>, the designated contact(s) will be notified of the new EPO via email.

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Payments > Early Payments.
- Expand the Edit Filters to set your EPO search criteria.
- 3. Click **Apply** to display available EPOs.
- Click on the Payment ID number to view the EPO.

Home Enablement Workbench Orders \sim Fulfillment \sim Invoices \sim	Payments ~ Catalogs Reports ~ Messages
③ Need to customize your view of the data? Create your own tiles, save filters, and more to	Early Payments ch page. Go to Workbench
	Scheduled Payments
Payments	Remitances
S 288 K S 294 K S 37 C Early payment offers Scheduled payments Rev 90 days Lat 21 d	ces
Early payment offers (12) ✓ Edit filter	
Customers Invoice number	Payment proposal ID Payment date range
Select or type selections 🖸 Type Selection	Type selection Next 90 days 🗸
	Partial match Exact match

Home Enablemer	nt Workbench (Orders ~ Fulfillment ~	Invoices ~ Payn	nents - Catalogs	Reports ~	Messages
③ Need to customic	ze your view of the data?	Create your own tiles, save	e filters, and more by naviga	ating to the Workbench p	age. Go to Workbe	nch
Payments						
\$ 288 Early payment Next 90 day	offers Sch	294 K eduled payments Next 90 days	\$ 373 K Remittances Last 31 days)		
Early payment o	Next 90 days					
Review/Accept Ea	Invoice		Payment ID		Due Date	Projected Settlement Date
	INV4092	86	81001980142023001	IBCH1Q01	Nov 23, 2022	Nov 10, 2022

5. The **Review Early Payment Offer** panel shows a sliding scale chart with scheduled payment dates and

the applicable discounts.

Expected settlement date		Discount rate		otal discount amount		Total	settlement amount
Dec 8, 2022	\$6,946.88 CAD	0.986%	\$	65.23 CAD		\$6,88	1.65 CAD
Details Payment time	ine and history History						4
e: Payment will not be sett	led on Saturday, Sunday or holiday	ι.					
	1.052% \$6,877.28 CAD	0.723% \$6,899.05 CAD		0.395% \$6,920.75 CAD		0.066% \$6,942.51 CAD	
1.05%							
0.81%							
0.56%							
0.31%							
0.07%		1					
Click and	¹⁰⁷ d drag to choose your desire	Dec 12 ed day/rate		Dec 17	De	c 22	
yment details					Total t	ax adjustment	N/A 🖍
				Tax category	Tax location	Tax amount	Tax adjustment
				GST	CA00000000	\$330.80 CAD	N/A
Payment date	↑ Settlement da	ate	Days early	Discount rate	Discount a	mount	Settlement amour
	ydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST Inv nent date: Dec 23, 2022	oice: 8100225210 Sche	duled payment: 8100	2252102023001BCH1Q06	Invoice amount: \$6,946	88 CAD	
O Dec 07, 2022	Dec 08, 2022		15	0.986%	\$65.2	3 CAD	\$6,881.65 CA
Dec 08, 2022	Dec 09, 2022		14	0.921%	\$60.9	3 CAD	\$6,885.95 CA

- Payment date: preferred payment date
- Settlement date: actual date of payment
- Days early: number of days paid early
- Discount rate: early payment discount percentage
- Discount amount: early payment discount amount
- Settlement Amount: actual payment amount
- Click the button beside the Payment Date or click and drag the slider to select your preferred payment date/discount rate.

 Review the details on the confirmation page, then Click Done to return to the list of available EPOs. We will begin processing an EPO as soon as it's accepted.

Scheo	uled payment:810019801420	023001BCH1Q01								
0	The early payment proposal has been s	ubmitted. Set up an early	payment auto-acceptance rule t	to accept early payment offers au	tomatically. To recei	ve offers via email, se	et up email notificatio	n.		
									_	
	Expected settlement date	Total invoice amou	nt	Discount rate	Total discount	amount	int		Total se	ttlement amount
	Nov 11, 2022	\$31.50 CAD		0.789%	\$0.24 CAD				\$31	L.26 CAD
	Status	Early payment stat	us	Discount basis						
	Scheduled	Processed (Buy		\$30.00 CAD						
	benedated	Trocessed (bu)	(cr minuced)	500.00 OAD						
D	tails Payment timeline and hist									⊜ ⊥
Pay	ment details							Total tax	adjustment	N/A 🔨
							Tax category	Tax location	Tax amount	Tax adjustment
							GST	CA0000000	\$1.50 CAD	N/A
C	ustomer	Invoice	Scheduled payment	Invoice amount	Days early	Discount rate		Discount amount		Settlement amount
E	C Hydro - SUSTAINMENT TEST	INV409286	81001980142023001BCH	1Q01 \$31.50 CAD	12	0.789%		\$0.24 CAD		\$31.26 CAD
Ado	litional information									
			n. :	anda danadan	data					

CASH OPTIMIZER

The Cash Optimizer helps you to manage EPOs to meet your working capital requirements. Tell the cash optimizer the amount that you need by a specific date, and it will look at the invoices already scheduled for payment to recommend the best EPO options for your consideration.

°373

⁵294^K...

288 K

11 Nov, 2022

- From the Navigation Bar, click on Payments
 Early Payments.
- 2. Click on Use Cash Optimizer.
- Enter the required amount into Working Capital Needed.

ly Payment Offer								L	Use Cash Optimizer	1 🕞 🕴
Involce	Payment ID	Due Date	Projected Settlement Date	Remaining Days	Invoice Amount	Discount Basis	Discount Percent	Discount	Adjustment (Tax)	Net Payr
TEST	810022510620230018CH1Q06	Nov 30, 2022	Nov 10, 2022	21	\$2,152.50 CAD	\$2,050.00 CAD	1.315%	\$26.96 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	\$2,125.54
8100225110	81002251102023001BCH1Q06	Nov 30, 2022	Nov 10, 2022	21	\$10,064.15 CAD	\$9,584.90 CAD	1.315%	\$126.04 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	\$9,938.11
01NOV	810022511220230018CH1Q06	Dec 1, 2022	Nov 10, 2022	22	\$2,152.50 CAD	\$2,050.00 CAD	1.381%	\$28.31 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	\$2,124.19
5300223574	810022517320230018CH1Q06	Dec 2, 2022	Nov 10, 2022	23	\$207,052.26 CAD	\$197,192.63 CAD	1.447%	\$2,853.38 CAD	\$0.00 CAD	\$204,198.88

 Enter the Need by Date then click on Apply.

A list of invoices recommended for early payment will be displayed – providing you the required working capital with the least amount of discount.

\$0.00 CAD

Reporting

Ariba's reporting templates can keep you informed about your purchase orders, invoices and payments. These reports can be created and run by users with the appropriate reporting permissions.

- From your Ariba Navigation Bar, select Reports.
- 2. Click on **Create** to create a new report.

Repo	orts									
Use	e CSV o	r Excel reports to	o track information on	account usage, su	ich as purcha	se orders and invol	ces. Report fi	les are UTF-8 e	ncoded. If your ap	pplicati
	Repor	t Templates								
		Title †	Schedule Type	Report Type	Status	Last Run	Next Run	Created	Created By	Rep
	ц [Run	Download	Edit	Сору	Delete		Create	Refresh Stat	us

- 3. Enter the report **Title and Description**.
- Click Report Type to see and select from available report templates.

For example, use the **Failed Invoice** report to troubleshoot failed or rejected invoices, the **Failed Order** report to identify failed orders that need action, and the **Order Summary** report for an overview of orders received.

5. Click on Next to set your report Criteria.

Each report will have different criteria. Follow the prompts to set up your report.

 Once your report template is created, you can Run a report and Refresh its processing status, Download report data, and Edit/ Copy/Delete a template.

Report				
1 Report Description	Enter a title and description for this repo	rt. Check the Time Zone and Language settings. \	You can set the Time Z	one <i>More</i>
2 Criteria	Title:*			
	Description:			
	Time zone:	America/Vancouver	v	
	Language:	English	v	
	Report type:*	Select	\vee	
			Next	Exit

_									
Re	eports								
	Use CSV o	or Excel reports to tr	ack information on account us	age, such as purch	ase orders and in	voices. Report	files are UTF-8 e	ncoded. If your a	pplication does
	Repo	rt Templates							
		Title †	Schedule Type	Report Type	Status	Last Run	Next Run	Created	Created By
		Failed Orders	Manual	Order	Processed	10 Sep 2020		10 Sep 2020	John Smith
	\bigcirc	Order Summary	Manual	Order Summary	Processed	22 Dec 2020		22 Dec 2020	John Smith
	\bigcirc	Orders	Scheduled	Order	Processed	11 Sep 2020		11 Sep 2020	John Smith
Ļ	Ļ	Run	Download Edit	Сору	Dele	te	Create	Refresh St	atus

Troubleshooting

Question	Answer
Why does my order show Failed Status?	See <u>Failed Orders</u> .
Why are there so many order versions and must all be confirmed?	You must <u>review and confirm all new and revised orders</u> as they are received. Whenever an order is amended, you will receive a new version as all previous versions are obsoleted. Always work with the latest version.
Do I need to wait for the SES before invoicing?	With SES First services invoicing, an approved SES is required for invoice submission. However, this is not the case for the Invoice First services invoicing as these invoices will automatically generate a SES on invoice submission. See <u>Submitting Your Invoice</u> .
How do I correct a mistake on a submitted invoice?	You'll need to submit a credit memo to cancel/offset your invoice. Once the invoice shows as Rejected , you can submit the correct invoice using a unique invoice number. See <u>Correcting or</u> <u>Cancelling an Invoice</u> .
Why was my invoice rejected and how do I resubmit it?	The invoice couldn't be processed due to an error with the order, service entry sheet, or the invoice itself. You will receive an email with more information. See <u>Correcting or Cancelling an Invoice</u> .
I'm locked out of my account, what do I do?	 You'll need to request username recovery or password reset for the account. Go to the Ariba Supplier Login page and click on the Help Center icon located at the top-right of the page. Click Support then enter "Can't log in" into the search box. From the search results, choose "Can't Log in? Let us help you!" Follow the instructions to recover your username or to reset your password.
Our account administrator has changed, how do I update our account?	Have your current administrator <u>transfer the account administrator</u> <u>role</u> to the new administrator – see <u>User Roles and Access</u> , then update the contact information in your account's Company Profile. See <u>Keeping your Account Current</u> .
We've lost administrator access to our account / our administrator is no longer with our company, what do I do?	If your account administrator is no longer with the company and you have no access to your account to make changes, you'll need to contact the SAP Ariba Help Centre for assistance. See <u>Contact</u> <u>SAPAriba Help Centre</u> for instructions.

If you don't see the answer to your question, these references/contacts can assist you.

For questions related to	Contact
Electronic invoicing and transacting with BC Hydro	BC Hydro's Electronic Invoicing for Suppliers webpage
Orders	The BC Hydro Contract Administrator, Representative or Buyer named on the order
Service Sheets	The BC Hydro Contract Administrator named on the order
Invoices or payments, Early Payment Offers (EPO), Ariba registration and supplier training	AccountsPayable@bchydro.com

Contact Ariba Help Centre

While the BC Hydro Service Centre can assist you with the many of your Ariba enquiries, you'll need to contact the SAP Ariba Help Centre if you've lost administrator access to your Ariba account or if your account administrator is no longer active in this role.

Follow the instructions below to contact the SAP Ariba Help Centre. An Ariba representative will help you regain access to your account and assign a new account administrator if needed.

1. When contacting the SAP/Ariba Help Centre, have the following information handy:

- Your Ariba account number (ANID).
- Name and email address of the current Ariba account administrator listed on your account.
- Name and email address of the new Ariba account administrator.
- Goto the SAP Ariba Help Centre page <u>https://support.ariba.com/help</u>, and click SAP Business Network.



- 3. From the home page, click **Contact us**. SAP Help Center Home Home Learning Contact us How can we help you? 4. Click Account Help. Registration help Å Account help
- 5. Scroll to the bottom of the screen and click Reassign / transfer account admin.
- ign / transfer account admir User access Locked account Delete / expire acc Can't find what you're looking for? Create a C

Sign in help

2\$

Invoicing help

6. Click Create a Case.

7. Fill out all *required fields, check the I agree box, then click One last step.

Company: *		0	Unable to search items from an Activated ca	atalog
Email:*		•		
Phone:*	CP CP	0	Where can I find tutorials on how to respon	d to my RFP,
Extension:			RFI and Auction?	
Confirm phone:*		(2)	What is the link to the Ariba Help Center?	
Ariba Network ID:				
	You expressly agree and understand that your data entered into	0	How to access the Release Communication	documents
	this system will be transferred to Ariba, Inc. and the Ariba hosted computer systems (currently located primarily in the U.S.), in accordance with the SAP Ariba Privacy Statement and applicable law.	0	What is the difference between Enterprise a accounts?	ind Standard
L	I agree	0	How to change email address on SAP Field; account	glass worker
				One last step

8. Click in the Webform circle to select contact by email, then click Submit to submit your case.

> Ensure you add itsm.notificationservice@sap.com to your allowed senders list, otherwise Ariba Support emails may be blocked or considered spam.

Choose	e this cont	act method for the fas	test resolution of	our issue:	
Other r	methods y	ou may choose:			
۲	\bowtie				
۰	Mebform				
		gineer will respond to y	our case by		
۲	\bowtie				

When you are contacted by the Ariba Support team, be clear about the importance and urgency of your request to ensure the quickest possible resolution.